
Managed by: Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 
550 W. Eisenhower, Loveland, CO 80537 

Phone: 970-669-3611 | FAX: 970-669-3612 
Email: basemdadmin@pcgi.com 

BASELINE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1-9 
www.baselinemetrodistricts.org 

NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING AND AGENDA 

BASELINE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1, 2, 4-9 

Board of Directors         Office  Term Expiration   
Kim Perry         President & Chairperson  May 2025 
Kyle Harris          Vice President      May 2025 (Nos. 1, 2 & 4/May 2023 Nos. 5-9) 
Josh Kane         Secretary  May 2023 
Tim DePeder          Assistant Secretary May 2023 
Karen McShea          Treasurer  May 2025 

BASELINE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3 

Board of Directors          Office  Term Expiration 
Kim Perry          President & Chairperson May 2025  
Kyle Harris           Vice President      May 2025 
Josh Kane          Secretary May 2023 
Tim DePeder           Assistant Secretary May 2023 
Susan Brunkhardt          Secretary/Treasurer May 2025 

DATE: April 6, 2023 (Thursday) 
TIME: 1:00 p.m. 
PLACE: MS Teams and Teleconference Only 

Click here to join the meeting (Please press the control key and click to access hyperlink) 
https://tinyurl.com/yhmev95b  (This link can be copied into your web browser) 
720-721-3140; Conference ID: 894 678 356# (If joining the meeting by phone)

I. ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS
A. Call to Order.
B. Declaration of Quorum/Director Disclosure of any Potential Conflicts of Interest.
C. Approval of Agenda. (Pages 1-2)
D. Public Comment. Comments are limited to three (3) minutes per speaker.

II. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Approval of Minutes – March 2, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes. (Pages 3-7)
B. Ratification of Payables. (Pages 8-13)
C. Ratification of Contract Modifications. (Pages 14-17)
D. Approval of December 31, 2022 Financial Statements. (Pages 18-30)

1

mailto:basemdadmin@pcgi.com
http://www.baselinemetrodistricts.org/
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ZDgxODA0NDYtZDVlNC00YmNjLWE1MDgtNjk1NjMyOGUwNTk1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2295d90e40-ea92-4b9b-bab0-f6f9c6fe1c1d%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2239ccbfac-4f90-46c5-8191-8d0e4469e891%22%7d
https://tinyurl.com/yhmev95b


Baseline Metropolitan Districts Nos. 1-9 
April 6, 2023 
Page 2 

Managed by: Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 
550 W. Eisenhower, Loveland, CO 80537 

Phone: 970-669-3611 | FAX: 970-669-3612 
Email: baseadmin@pcgi.com  

III. CAPITAL INFRASTRUCTURE ITEMS
A. District Capital Infrastructure Report and Project Manager Update. (Pages 31-34)
B. Capital Fund Summary and Capital Needs Assessment Review.                               

(To Be Distributed Under Separate Cover)
C. Budget Approval and Contracting. (Page 35)

1. Linear Park Phase 1 (CFS #6)
a. Consider Approval of MRES Project Management Fee - $139,481.

IV. FINANCIAL ITEMS
A. Finance Manager’s Report.
B. Ratification of 2022 Audit Exemption for Districts Nos. 2-9. (Pages 36-93)

V. LEGAL ITEMS
A. Ratify Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants Related to Payments in Lieu 

of Taxes and Assessments (Davis). (Pages 94-104)
B. Consideration and Approval of First Amendment to Cost Sharing Agreement For 

Sanitary Sewer Line Extension with North Metro Fire Rescue District.                 
(Pages 105-109)

VI. DISTRICT MANAGER ITEMS
A. Manager’s Report. (Pages 110-112)

VII. OTHER MATTERS

VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION, pursuant to Colorado Open Meeting Law §24-6-402(4)(b) to 
consult with or receive advice from attorney regarding specific legal items, if necessary.

IX. ADJOURNMENT

***The next Regular Meeting is scheduled for May 4, 2023*** 

2

mailto:baseadmin@pcgi.com


RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

1 

MINUTES OF THE COORDINATED 
REGULAR MEETING OF 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
BASELINE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1-9 

HELD 
March 2, 2023 

The Boards of Directors of the Baseline Metropolitan District Nos. 1-9 held a coordinated regular 
meeting, open to the public, via MS Teams at 1:00 p.m. on Thursday, March 2, 2023.  

ATTENDANCE Directors in Attendance: (District Nos. 1, 2, 4-9) 
Kim Perry, President & Chairperson 
Kyle Harris, Vice President 
Josh Kane, Secretary  
Tim DePeder, Assistant Secretary 
Karen McShea, Treasurer    

Directors in Attendance: (District No. 3) 
Kim Perry, President & Chairperson  
Kyle Harris, Vice President 
Josh Kane, Secretary  
Tim DePeder, Assistant Secretary 

Directors Absent, but Excused: 
Susan Brunkhardt, Secretary/Treasurer 

Also in Attendance Were: 
Alan Pogue; Icenogle Seaver Pogue, P.C. 
Amanda Dwight, Christina Rotella, Jim Niemczyk, Mike McBride, Jeremy 
Baldyga, and Samantha Romero; McWhinney.

Amanda Dawley; Contour Services. 
Christina Jakupovic; Cohere. 
Sarah Bromley, Bryan Newby, Shannon McEvoy, Irene Buenavista, 
Brendan Campbell, Nic Ortiz, Stanley Holder, Adam Brix, and Jordan 
Wood; Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 
__________ 

3



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

   

 
 
 
 

 

2 

CALL TO ORDER The meeting was called to order at 1:03 p.m. by Director Perry, President of 
the Boards, noting that a quorum was present. The Directors in attendance 
confirmed their qualifications to serve. 
__________ 
 

COMBINED MEETING The Districts met in a combined Board meeting.  Unless otherwise noted, 
the matters set forth below shall be deemed to be the actions of the Baseline 
Metropolitan District No. 1, with concurrence by Baseline Metropolitan 
Districts Nos. 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, and 9. 
__________ 
 

CONFLICT OF 
INTEREST 
DISCLOSURE 

Mr. Pogue noted that notices of potential conflicts of interest for Board 
Members employed by McWhinney Real Estate Services, Inc. were filed 
with the Colorado Secretary of State at least 72 hours in advance of the 
meeting, disclosing that potential conflicts of interest may exist, as some 
Board Members are employees of McWhinney Real Estate Services, Inc. 
which is associated with the primary landowner and developer of land 
within the Districts. Mr. Pogue advised the Boards that pursuant to 
Colorado law, certain disclosures by the Board Members might be required 
prior to taking official action at a meeting. The Boards reviewed the agenda 
for the meeting, following which each Board Member present confirmed 
the contents of the written disclosures previously made stating the fact and 
summary nature of any matters as required under Colorado law to permit 
official action to be taken at the meeting. Additionally, the Boards 
determined that the participation of the members present was necessary to 
obtain a quorum or otherwise enable the Boards to act. 
__________ 
 

APPROVAL OF 
AGENDA  

The Boards considered the agenda. Following review and discussion, upon 
motion duly made by Director Kane, seconded by Director McShea and, 
upon vote, unanimously carried it was 
 

RESOLVED to approve the agenda as amended removing item 
II. D. Review and Consider Unaudited Financial Statements for the period 
ending December 31, 2022. 
__________ 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

There were no members of the public present.  
__________ 
 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 

The Boards considered the following items on the consent agenda: 
 

4



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

   

 
 
 
 

 

3 

 A. Approval of Minutes – February 2, 2023, Regular Meeting 
Minutes.  

B. Ratification of Payables.  
C. Ratification of Contract Modifications.  
 

Following review and discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Kane, 
seconded by Director McShea and, upon vote, unanimously carried it was 
 

RESOLVED to approve the consent agenda as presented. 
__________  
 

CAPITAL 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
ITEMS 
 
 
 
 

Capital Infrastructure Report: Mr. Holder reviewed the District Capital 
Infrastructure Report with the Boards and reviewed the bidding results from 
the pre-bid process that occurred on February 6, 2023. Mr. Holder then 
answered questions regarding the capital infrastructure report. 
 
District Project Manager Update: Mr. Niemczyk presented the District 
Project Manager Update to the Boards and answered questions. 
 
Capital Fund Summary and Capital Needs Assessment: Mr. Niemczyk 
reviewed the Capital Fund Summary and Capital Needs Assessment with the 
Boards and answered questions. 
 
Parkside West Phase 1 (CFS #3): Mr. Niemczyk and Mr. Holder presented 
the Bid Analysis Summary Memorandum for the Public Landscaping 
Project and answered questions.  
 
Consider Approval of Construction Contract for Public Landscaping 
Project: Mr. Holder provided recommendations regarding the bids received 
to the Boards and answered questions. Following review and discussion, 
upon motion duly made by Director Harris, seconded by Director Kane, and, 
upon vote, unanimously carried it was  
 

RESOLVED to reject the current bids presented and begin a 
negotiation process. 
 
160th Avenue (CFS #14) and Sheridan Parkway Phase 2 (CFS #15): Mr. 
Niemczyk and Mr. Holder presented the Bid Analysis Summary 
Memorandum for Public Infrastructure Roadways to the Boards and 
answered questions. 
 

5



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

   

 
 
 
 

 

4 

Consider Approval of Construction Contract for Public Infrastructure 
Roadways: Mr. Holder presented the received bids for the Public 
Infrastructure Roadways for 160th (CFS #14) and Sheridan Parkway (CFS 
#15). Mr. Niemczyk presented Asphalt Specialties bid and answered 
questions from the Boards.  Following review and discussion, upon motion 
duly made by Director Kane, seconded by Director Harris and, upon vote, 
unanimously carried it was  
 

RESOLVED to approve the bid from Asphalt Specialties in the 
amount of $2,082,004.70 for the Public Infrastructure and Roadways for 
160th and Sheridan Parkway Phase 2. 
 
Flex Phase 3 Offsite (CFS #17): Ms. Dwight presented the MRES Project 
Management Fee in the amount of $59,305.72 and answered questions from 
the Boards. Following review and discussion, upon motion duly made by 
Director Harris, seconded by Director DePeder, and, upon vote, 
unanimously carried it was  

 
RESOLVED to approve the MRES Project Management Fee in the 

amount of $59,305.72. 
 

Parkside West Phase 2 (CFS #21): Ms. Dwight presented the Master Service 
Agreement and Work Order 2023-01 with Lat40, Inc. in the amount of 
$7,825.00 and answered questions from the Boards. Following review and 
discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Kane, seconded by Director 
Harris, and, upon vote, unanimously carried it was 
 

RESOLVED to approve the Master Service Agreement and Work 
Order 2023-01 with Lat40, Inc. in the amount of $7,825.00 with an 
amendment to remove “North Park” verbiage from the Master Service 
Agreement.  
__________  
 

FINANCIAL ITEMS  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Finance Manager’s Report: Ms. Buenavista presented the Finance 
Manager’s Report to the Boards and answered questions.  

  
 

 

 
 
LEGAL ITEMS 

__________  
 
There were no legal items presented at the meeting. 
__________  
 

6



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

   

 
 
 
 

 

5 

DISTRICT MANAGER 
ITEMS 

Manager’s Report: Mr. Newby discussed the Manager’s report with the 
Boards and answered questions. Following, Mr. Brix discussed Operations 
and Maintenance updates with the Boards and answered questions.  
 
Consider Approval of Granting Permission to Baseline Enrichment and 
Community Collaboration Assembly: Ms. Bromley presented to the Board 
a request to permit the Baseline Enrichment and Community Collaboration 
Assembly to utilize Checker Square on Friday, June 9, 2023, which included 
a permit for alcohol consumption at the Take 2 The Trails Event. Following 
review and discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Kane, seconded 
by Director Harris, and, upon vote, unanimously carried it was 
 

RESOLVED to approve and grant permission to the Baseline 
Enrichment and Community Collaboration Assembly to utilize Checker 
Square on Friday, June 9, 2023 and to serve alcohol at the Take 2 The Trails 
Event subject to legal counsel providing a license agreement to include 
appropriate indemnification language to protect the district in the event of 
any injuries to person or damage to property resulting from the event.   
__________ 
 

OTHER MATTERS 
 

There were no other matters brought before the Boards. 
__________ 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION There was no Executive Session necessary in the meeting.  
__________ 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
There being no further business to come before the Boards, the meeting was 
adjourned at 1:42 p.m. 
__________ 
 

  
                                   Respectfully submitted, 
 
                                   _________________________________ 

   Jordan Wood 
                                   Recording Secretary for the Meeting 

 

7



 Baseline Metropolitan District No. 1

 Check Detail
 February 25 through March 29, 2023

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 02/28/2023 Special District Association 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

Bill 2023 MembershipBLMD8 01/10/2023 1-51120 · Office and Other 225.00

TOTAL 225.00

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 02/28/2023 Special District Association 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

Bill 2023 MembershipBLMD3 01/10/2023 1-51120 · Office and Other 252.29

TOTAL 252.29

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 02/28/2023 United Power 1-11005 · Checking - First Bank

Bill 18297000 01.23 01/01/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 22.66

TOTAL 22.66

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 02/28/2023 Bill.com 1-11005 · Checking - First Bank

Bill 23028229276 01/31/2023 1-51120 · Office and Other 120.19

TOTAL 120.19

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 02/28/2023 Special District Association 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

Bill 2023 MembershipBLMD6 01/10/2023 1-51120 · Office and Other 225.00

TOTAL 225.00

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 02/28/2023 United Power 1-11005 · Checking - First Bank

Bill 22028601 01/01/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 17.24

TOTAL 17.24

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 02/28/2023 City and County of Broomfield- xx9342 1-11005 · Checking - First Bank

Bill 172139342 01.23 01/19/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 58.48

TOTAL 58.48

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 02/28/2023 City and County of Broomfield-xx7935 1-11005 · Checking - First Bank

Bill 172137935 01.23 01/19/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 62.14

TOTAL 62.14

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 02/28/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

Bill 23968 01/31/2023 1-51040 · District Management 7,245.00

1-51000 · Accounting 10,220.00

1-51045 · Facilities Management 6,020.00

1-51120 · Office and Other 158.13

TOTAL 23,643.13

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 02/28/2023 United Power 1-11005 · Checking - First Bank

Bill 23083100 01.23 01/01/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 7.44

TOTAL 7.44

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 02/28/2023 Environmental Designs, Inc 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

Bill 162242 01/28/2023 1-52906 · Hardscape Repair & Upgrade 355.40

TOTAL 355.40

 Page 1 of 6

8



  Baseline Metropolitan District No. 1

 Check Detail
 February 25 through March 29, 2023

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 02/28/2023 Special District Association 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 2023 MembershipBLMD7 01/10/2023 1-51120 · Office and Other 225.00

TOTAL 225.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 02/28/2023 United Power 1-11005 · Checking - First Bank

 

Bill 17971400 01.23 01/01/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 22.28

TOTAL 22.28

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 02/28/2023 United Power 1-11005 · Checking - First Bank

 

Bill 19336600 01.23 01/01/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 22.28

TOTAL 22.28

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 02/28/2023 City and County of Broomfield-xx4024 1-11005 · Checking - First Bank

 

Bill 172144024 01.23 01/26/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 125.09

TOTAL 125.09

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 02/28/2023 City and County of Broomfield- xx2457 1-11005 · Checking - First Bank

 

Bill 172142457 01/26/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 13.91

TOTAL 13.91

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 02/28/2023 United Power 1-11005 · Checking - First Bank

 

Bill 23093800 01.23 01/01/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 7.44

TOTAL 7.44

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 02/28/2023 City and County of Broomfield- xx7295 1-11005 · Checking - First Bank

 

Bill 172137295 01.23 01/19/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 62.14

TOTAL 62.14

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 02/28/2023 Environmental Designs, Inc 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 161886 01/26/2023 1-52201 · Snow Removal 1,615.00

TOTAL 1,615.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 02/28/2023 Special District Association 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 2023 MembershipBLMD5 01/10/2023 1-51120 · Office and Other 225.00

TOTAL 225.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 02/28/2023 Special District Association 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 2023 MembershipBLMD2 01/10/2023 1-51120 · Office and Other 301.13

TOTAL 301.13

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 02/28/2023 City and County of Broomfield-xx7875 1-11005 · Checking - First Bank

 

Bill 172137875 01.23 01/19/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 58.48

TOTAL 58.48

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 02/28/2023 City and County of Broomfield- xx6828 1-11005 · Checking - First Bank

 

Bill 172136828 01.23 01/26/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 55.59

TOTAL 55.59

 

 Page 2 of 6

9



  Baseline Metropolitan District No. 1

 Check Detail
 February 25 through March 29, 2023

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 02/28/2023 Utility Notification Center of Colorado 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 223010167 01/31/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 232.20

TOTAL 232.20

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 02/28/2023 High Plains Environmental Center 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 2534 01/01/2023 1-52107 · Native Area O&M 1,112.92

TOTAL 1,112.92

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 02/28/2023 Icenogle Seaver Pogue, P.C. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 22995 01/31/2023 1-51110 · Legal 5,171.50

1-51050 · Elections 304.00

TOTAL 5,475.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 02/28/2023 City and County of Broomfield-xx9419 1-11005 · Checking - First Bank

 

Bill 172119419 01.23 01/19/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 62.15

TOTAL 62.15

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 02/28/2023 Special District Association 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 33128 01/11/2023 1-51120 · Office and Other 225.00

TOTAL 225.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 02/28/2023 Environmental Designs, Inc 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 161313 01/10/2023 1-52101 · Manicured Landscaping O&M 8,603.75

TOTAL 8,603.75

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 02/28/2023 United Power 1-11005 · Checking - First Bank

 

Bill 21823400 01.23 01/01/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 16.47

TOTAL 16.47

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 02/28/2023 Environmental Designs, Inc 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 161415 01/11/2023 1-52201 · Snow Removal 75.00

TOTAL 75.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 02/28/2023 United Power 1-11005 · Checking - First Bank

 

Bill 22283900 01.23 01/01/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 17.67

TOTAL 17.67

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 02/28/2023 City and County of Broomfield- xx3580 1-11005 · Checking - First Bank

 

Bill 172143580 01.23 01/19/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 62.14

TOTAL 62.14

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 02/28/2023 Special District Association 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 2023 MembershipBLMD4 01/10/2023 1-51120 · Office and Other 312.35

TOTAL 312.35

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 02/28/2023 City and County of Broomfield-xx9884 1-11005 · Checking - First Bank

 

Bill 172139884 01.23 01/19/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 62.14

TOTAL 62.14

 

 Page 3 of 6

10



  Baseline Metropolitan District No. 1

 Check Detail
 February 25 through March 29, 2023

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 02/28/2023 City and County of Broomfield- xx6748 1-11005 · Checking - First Bank

 

Bill 172116748 01.23 01/19/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 62.15

TOTAL 62.15

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 02/28/2023 Special District Association 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 2023 MembershipBLMD1 01/10/2023 1-51120 · Office and Other 1,237.50

TOTAL 1,237.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 03/05/2023 Bill.com 1-11005 · Checking - First Bank

 

Bill 23038596705 02/28/2023 1-51120 · Office and Other 109.83

TOTAL 109.83

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/15/2023 McWhinney Real Estate Services, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 357877 11/30/2022 3-55362 · Project Management 2,316.83

TOTAL 2,316.83

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/15/2023 McWhinney Real Estate Services, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 360178 11/30/2022 3-55362 · Project Management 2,316.83

TOTAL 2,316.83

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 23938 01/31/2023 3-55303 · Project Administration 3,112.50

TOTAL 3,112.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 Wenk Associates, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 0000501018 12/31/2022 3-55304 · Engineering 1,501.20

TOTAL 1,501.20

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 Matrix Design Group, Inc 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 38770 01/23/2023 3-55304 · Engineering 390.00

TOTAL 390.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/20/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 23935 01/31/2022 3-55293 · Project Administration 975.00

TOTAL 975.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/20/2023 Wenk Associates, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 0000501030 12/31/2022 3-55264 · Engineering 3,768.75

TOTAL 3,768.75

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/20/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 23922 01/31/2023 3-55403 · Project Administration 1,260.00

TOTAL 1,260.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/20/2023 Prairie Mountain Media 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 1941635 12/31/2022 3-55205 · Permits, Fees and Other 196.24

TOTAL 196.24

 

 Page 4 of 6

11



  Baseline Metropolitan District No. 1

 Check Detail
 February 25 through March 29, 2023

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/20/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 23936 01/31/2023 3-55313 · Project Administration 1,050.00

TOTAL 1,050.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/20/2023 Wenk Associates, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 0000500928 11/30/2022 3-55264 · Engineering 887.12

TOTAL 887.12

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/20/2023 Matrix Design Group, Inc 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 38766 12/31/2022 3-55404 · Engineering 1,875.00

TOTAL 1,875.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/20/2023 Coyote Ridge Construction, LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 220028 11/30/2022 3-55361 · Project Direct 30,746.74

TOTAL 30,746.74

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/20/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 23931 01/31/2023 3-55233 · Project Administration 862.50

TOTAL 862.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/20/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 23933 01/31/2023 3-55143 · Project Administration 825.00

TOTAL 825.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/20/2023 Wenk Associates, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 0000501019 12/31/2022 3-55344 · Engineering 1,335.00

TOTAL 1,335.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/20/2023 Prairie Mountain Media 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 1945060 01/31/2023 3-55345 · Permits, Fees and Other 190.08

TOTAL 190.08

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/20/2023 Wenk Associates, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 0000501023 12/31/2022 3-55234 · Engineering 3,477.50

TOTAL 3,477.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/20/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 23925 01/31/2023 3-51040 · Capital-General District Mgmt 4,950.00

TOTAL 4,950.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/20/2023 Prairie Mountain Media 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 1947612 01/31/2023 3-55345 · Permits, Fees and Other 90.64

TOTAL 90.64

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/20/2023 Norris Design, Inc 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 01-78153 12/31/2022 3-55314 · Engineering 292.75

TOTAL 292.75

 

 Page 5 of 6

12



  Baseline Metropolitan District No. 1

 Check Detail
 February 25 through March 29, 2023

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/20/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 23932 01/31/2023 3-55263 · Project Administration 937.50

TOTAL 937.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/20/2023 Matrix Design Group, Inc 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 38254 10/31/2022 3-55364 · Engineering 2,831.25

TOTAL 2,831.25

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/20/2023 Wenk Associates, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 0000501017 12/31/2022 3-55144 · Engineering 187.50

TOTAL 187.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/20/2023 Wenk Associates, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 0000501027 12/31/2022 3-55404 · Engineering 70.00

TOTAL 70.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/20/2023 Wenk Associates, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 0000501056 12/31/2022 3-55264 · Engineering 260.00

TOTAL 260.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/20/2023 BrightView Landscape Development 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill App 27 01/31/2023 3-55141 · Project-Direct 2,350.54

TOTAL 2,350.54

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/20/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 23926 01/31/2023 3-55363 · Project Administration 1,125.00

TOTAL 1,125.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 03/23/2023 United Power 1-11005 · Checking - First Bank

 

Bill 19336600 02.23 02/01/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 22.28

TOTAL 22.28

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 03/23/2023 United Power 1-11005 · Checking - First Bank

 

Bill 18297000 02.23 02/01/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 22.66

TOTAL 22.66

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 03/23/2023 United Power 1-11005 · Checking - First Bank

 

Bill 17971400 02.23 02/01/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 22.28

TOTAL 22.28

Total 115,637.77

 Page 6 of 6

13



Contract Modifications for Board Ratification
Baseline Metropolitan District No. 1 (North Park)

Baseline Linear Park  (BASELINEBLP)

Contractor:
Wenk Associates, Inc.

Contract #:
Cnt00626

Modification Amount:
$88,370.00

Modification Date:
2 /23/2023

Modification Description:
Work Order 202301

Modification Scope:
Landscape Architecture Design and Bid Assistance Services

Contractor Signed Date:

District Signed Date:
3 /20/2023

Payment Method:
Time & Materials

Baseline East  Sheridan Residential Phase 2  (BASELINEESRPH2)

Contractor:
Coyote Ridge Construction, LLC

Contract #:
Cnt01194

Modification Amount:
$506,284.99

Modification Date:
1 /9 /2023

Modification Description:
Change Order #9

Modification Scope:
Provide and extend 36inch RCP storm sewer pipe, construct a stormwater detention forebay 
and maintenance path for the existing Baseline Flex 3 Industrial Building stormwater drainage 
improvements per Scope Change

Contractor Signed Date:
1 /13/2023

District Signed Date:
1 /13/2023

Payment Method:
Unit Price

Contractor:
Coyote Ridge Construction, LLC

Contract #:
Cnt01194

Modification Amount:
$19,764.77

Modification Date:
3 /3 /2023

Modification Description:
Chagne Order #11

Modification Scope:
Adjustment to Dry Utility Sleeves per plan revision

Contractor Signed Date:
3 /22/2023

District Signed Date:
3 /21/2023

Payment Method:
Unit Price

Contractor:
Coyote Ridge Construction, LLC

Contract #:
Cnt01194

Modification Amount:
$8,390.49

Modification Date:
3 /3 /2023

Modification Description:
Change Order #12

Modification Scope:
Additional blowoffs for water testing per CCOB

Contractor Signed Date:
3 /22/2023

District Signed Date:
3 /21/2023

Payment Method:
Unit Price

Printed:  3/29/2023 12:53:40 PM  Contract Modifications by Date Range  1/1/2023  to  3/29/2023

14



Baseline Metropolitan District No. 1 (North Park)

Contractor:
Coyote Ridge Construction, LLC

Contract #:
Cnt01194

Modification Amount:
$22,022.58

Modification Date:
3 /3 /2023

Modification Description:
Change Order #13

Modification Scope:
Additional water parts above original bid tab scope. Original bid tab had tabulated five 24” 
Butterfly
Valves for the 24” mainline. Six 24” Butterfly Valves are necessary to complete the line which 
also
includes bolt packages and fittings to install. In addition, fortyfour feet of additional 24” pipe 
and fittings
are required to complete 24” water line per spec

Contractor Signed Date:
3 /22/2023

District Signed Date:
3 /21/2023

Payment Method:
Unit Price

Contractor:
Coyote Ridge Construction, LLC

Contract #:
Cnt01194

Modification Amount:
$19,630.27

Modification Date:
3 /3 /2023

Modification Description:
Change Order #14

Modification Scope:
Installation of fire hydrant extensions to get fire hydrants to grade per spec. Because the 
water line is
lower than 5’ from grade in most places, extensions are required for all hydrants that are 
greater than
5’ in length

Contractor Signed Date:

District Signed Date:
3 /21/2023

Payment Method:
Unit Price

Contractor:
Coyote Ridge Construction, LLC

Contract #:
Cnt01194

Modification Amount:
$16,713.82

Modification Date:
3 /3 /2023

Modification Description:
Change Order #15

Modification Scope:
Adjustment to sidewalk cost due to HKS sidewalk breakout exhibit. Removed 461 SY of 6” 
concrete and
added 621 SY of 4” concrete

Contractor Signed Date:

District Signed Date:
3 /21/2023

Payment Method:
Unit Price

Baseline Flex Industrial Phase 3  (BASELINEF2RCPH3)

Contractor:
Matrix Design Group, Inc.

Contract #:
Cnt00634

Modification Amount:
$8,000.00

Modification Date:
2 /13/2023

Modification Description:
CO 3 to WO 202211

Modification Scope:
Construction Phase Services

Contractor Signed Date:
2 /24/2023

District Signed Date:
2 /23/2023

Payment Method:
Time & Materials

Printed:  3/29/2023 12:53:40 PM  Contract Modifications by Date Range  1/1/2023  to  3/29/2023

15



Baseline Metropolitan District No. 1 (North Park)
Baseline  Monumentation Phase Three  (BaselineMONPH3)

Contractor:
ArtHouse Design

Contract #:
Cnt00863

Modification Amount:
$33,500.00

Modification Date:
3 /8 /2023

Modification Description:
Work Order #202301

Modification Scope:
Monumentation Signage and Wayfinding Design and Implementation Services.

Contractor Signed Date:

District Signed Date:
3 /21/2023

Payment Method:
Time & Materials

Baseline O&M  (BASELINEOM)

Contractor:
OLM, Inc.

Contract #:
Cnt00579

Modification Amount:
$9,849.00

Modification Date:
1 /6 /2023

Modification Description:
WO 202301

Modification Scope:
Landscape Inspection Services

Contractor Signed Date:
3 /6 /2023

District Signed Date:
3 /3 /2023

Payment Method:
Lump Sum

Baseline West Sheridan Residential Phase 1  (BASELINEWSRPH1)

Contractor:
Premier Earthworks & Infrastructure

Contract #:
Cnt00859

Modification Amount:
$23,478.92

Modification Date:
3 /10/2023

Modification Description:
Change Order #43

Modification Scope:
Repainting Fire Hydrants, Grout Existing Sewer Manholes, and Fire Hydrant Test Stations with 
Clamps.

Contractor Signed Date:

District Signed Date:
3 /20/2023

Payment Method:
Unit Price

West Sheridan Residential Phase 2  (BASELINEWSRPH2)

Contractor:
Flatirons, Inc.

Contract #:
Cnt00738

Modification Amount:
$1,452.50

Modification Date:
3 /8 /2023

Modification Description:
CO #9 to WO #202002

Modification Scope:
Additional Construction Survey Services.

Contractor Signed Date:
3 /21/2023

District Signed Date:
3 /17/2023

Payment Method:
Time & Materials

Printed:  3/29/2023 12:53:40 PM  Contract Modifications by Date Range  1/1/2023  to  3/29/2023

16



Baseline Metropolitan District No. 1 (North Park)

Contractor:
Flatirons, Inc.

Contract #:
Cnt00738

Modification Amount:
$620.00

Modification Date:
3 /8 /2023

Modification Description:
CO 10 to WO 202002

Modification Scope:
Additional Construction Staking Services Electrical Line.

Contractor Signed Date:
3 /21/2023

District Signed Date:
3 /17/2023

Payment Method:
Time & Materials

Contractor:
Flatirons, Inc.

Contract #:
Cnt00738

Modification Amount:
$2,842.50

Modification Date:
3 /8 /2023

Modification Description:
CO 11 to WO 202002

Modification Scope:
Additional Construction Staking Services.

Contractor Signed Date:
3 /21/2023

District Signed Date:
3 /17/2023

Payment Method:
Time & Materials

Contractor:
HallContracting

Contract #:
Cnt01188

Modification Amount:
$877.50

Modification Date:
2 /8 /2023

Modification Description:
Change Order #5

Modification Scope:
Removed concrete slabs from tract NN

Contractor Signed Date:
2 /24/2023

District Signed Date:
2 /24/2023

Payment Method:
Unit Price

Printed:  3/29/2023 12:53:40 PM  Contract Modifications by Date Range  1/1/2023  to  3/29/2023

17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



Loveland      Denver 
        550 W. Eisenhower Blvd 6950 E. Belleview Ave, Suite 200 
          Loveland, CO 80537  Greenwood Village, CO 80111 

(970) 669.3611 (303) 333.4380 

To: Baseline Metropolitan District Board of Directors 
From: Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 
Subject: District Capital Infrastructure Project Report 
Board Meeting Date: April 6, 2023 

BIDDING 

1. Parkside West Phase 1 Public Landscaping (CFS #3)
• The mandatory pre-bid meeting was held on Wednesday December 21, 2022.  The public

bid opening was held on Monday February 6, 2023 with three contractors submitting a
bid.  Bid results and contractor recommendations were presented at the March 2, 2023
board meeting with the board giving direction for the PM team to discuss VE options with
differing contractors.

2. Southlands Public Infrastructure (CFS #12)
• The public bid opening was held on Monday August 15, 2022 with three contractors

submitting a bid. Bid results and contractor recommendations will be presented at the May
4, 2023 board meeting.

CONSTRUCTION 

3. Parkside West Phase 1 Public Infrastructure Improvements (CFS #3)
• CRC continues construction of sidewalks and roadway asphalt top lift and remains on

track for final completion by end of May 2023.

4. Monumentation Phase 1 (CFS #7)
• Installation of primary boundary marker/monument sign is complete. Final electrical

service termination is complete and final acceptance anticipated by late April 2023.

5. West Sheridan Residential Phase 2 Public Landscaping Improvements (CFS #11)
• Hall Contracting continues installation of irrigation lines, landscaping, and remains on

track with final completion anticipated by Summer 2023.

6. Southlands (CFS #12)
• A fully executed construction contract for public grading has been issued to Coyote Ridge

Construction. An anticipated start date is late Spring 2023.

7. Linear Park Phase 2 and Drainage (CFS #13)
• A fully executed construction contract for public grading has been issued to Coyote Ridge

Construction. An anticipated start date is late Spring 2023.

8. 160th Avenue (CFS #14)
• A fully executed construction contract for public grading has been issued to Coyote Ridge

Construction. An anticipated start date is late Spring 2023.

31



 

 Loveland           Denver 
               550 W. Eisenhower Blvd     6950 E. Belleview Ave, Suite 200 
           Loveland, CO 80537                          Greenwood Village, CO 80111 
                          (970) 669.3611                       (303) 333.4380 

 

• A fully executed construction contract for public utilities has been issued to Wagner 
Construction.  An anticipated start date is late Spring 2023. 

• A fully executed construction contract for public roadways has been issued to Asphalt 
Specialties.  An anticipated start date is for early Summer 2023.   

 
9. Sheridan Parkway Phase 2 (CFS #15) 

• A fully executed construction contract for public grading has been issued to Coyote Ridge 
Construction. An anticipated start date is late Spring 2023. 

• A fully executed construction contract for public utilities has been issued to Wagner 
Construction.  An anticipated start date is late Spring 2023. 

• A fully executed construction contract for public roadways has been issued to Asphalt 
Specialties.  An anticipated start date is for early Summer 2023.   

 
10. Monumentation Phase 2 (CFS #16) 

• Installation of all signs is complete. Final electrical service termination at each sign 
continues and remains on track with final completion anticipated by late April 2023. 

 
11. Flex Industrial Phase 3 (Filing 2 Replat C Phase 3) Storm Sewer Improvements (CFS #17) 

• CRC continues with installation of storm sewer improvements, and remains on track for 
final completion anticipated for Summer 2023. 
 

12. Parkside West Phase 2 Public Infrastructure Improvements (CFS #21) 
• CRC continues with installation of sanitary sewer, water, dry utility sleeves, and area 

drains and remains on track for final completion anticipated by late June 2023. 
  
WARRANTY 
 

13. Sheridan Parkway Phase 1 Public Infrastructure Improvements (CFS #2) 
• City and County of Broomfield warranty period expires in March 2024. Final Acceptance 

is tentatively scheduled for late February 2024. 
 

14. Sanitary Sewer Trunk Line (CFS #4) 
• City and County of Broomfield warranty period expires in May 2023. Final Acceptance is 

tentatively scheduled for April 2023. 
 

15. Preble Creek Drainage (CFS #5) 
• City and County of Broomfield warranty period expires in July 2024. Final Acceptance is 

tentatively scheduled for June 2024. 
 

16. Preble Creek Median Landscaping (CFS #8) 
• City and County of Broomfield warranty period expires in October 2023. Final 

Acceptance is tentatively scheduled for September 2023. 
 

17. Southeast Industrial Offsite Roadway Public Infrastructure Improvements (CFS #10) 
• City and County of Broomfield warranty period expires in December 2023. Final 

Acceptance is tentatively scheduled for November 2023. 
 

18. West Sheridan Residential Phase 2 Public Infrastructure Improvements (CFS #11) 

32



Loveland      Denver 
        550 W. Eisenhower Blvd 6950 E. Belleview Ave, Suite 200 
          Loveland, CO 80537  Greenwood Village, CO 80111 

(970) 669.3611 (303) 333.4380 

• City and County of Broomfield warranty period expires in March 2024. Final Acceptance
is tentatively scheduled for February 2024.

19. Flex Industrial Phase 1 (Filing 2 Replat C Phase 1) Sanitary Sewer Service
• City and County of Broomfield warranty period expires in January 2024. Final

Acceptance is tentatively scheduled for December 2023.

20. Flex Industrial Phase 3 (Filing 2 Replat C Phase 3) Sanitary Sewer Improvements
• City and County of Broomfield warranty period expires in December 2024. Final

Acceptance is tentatively scheduled for November 2024.

33



B.A.SELINE 
Baseline Community Master Plan 

Concept Plan Scale 1 "=400' I 1 :4800 
N 

C) 

.. 

o-■�2oo __ L._ _ _
_,,°f:eET 

100 500 

·-·-·-·-·-·i1

2) Sheridan Pkwy Ph 1 
3) Pa· side West Ph 1 
4) Sanitary Sewer Trunk Line 
5) le Creek Drainage 
6) ar Park Ph 1 
V) Momunentation Ph 1 
8) Preble Creek Median Landscaping 
9) Center Street District 
10) Southeast Industrial 
11 ) West Sheridan Residential Ph 2 
12) Southlands (aka Parkside West 
Southlands) 
13) Linear Park Ph 2 & Drainage 
14) 160th Ave 
15) Sheridan Pkwy Ph 2 
16) Monumentation Ph 2 
17) Flex Ph 3 & 4 (Filing 2 Replat C Ph 3) 
18) Parkside West Ph 3 & 4 
19) Huron Street (Design Only) 
20) Linear Park Ph 4 (Design Only) 
21) Parkside West Ph 2 

Other Areas/Projects 
A) Parkside West - Davis Apts 
B) Parkside West - Finley (build for rent) 

r---- C) Flex Industrial 1 & 2 
D) Parkside West -Southlands (Grayson) 
E) Linear Park Ph 3 
F) Linear Park Ph 5 
G) Parkside East 
H) Pedestrian Bridge (Alcott Way Ph. 2) 
J) West Sheridan Residential Ph 1 
K) Tract TT (State Hwy 7 Frontage 
Landscaping) 

.CFS 

.CFS - projects that are too small or 
in multiple spots (i.e. trail signs) within an 
area pinpointed on the map 

Updated: November 18, 2022 

Disclaimer:Mapisnotto scaleandis intendedforinformationaland 
illustrativepurposesonly.Plans,uses,zoning,amenities,features, 
availability,acreage,sizes,dates,vehiclecounts,listedowners/tenants,and 
otherelementsaresubjectto changebyMcWhinneyRealEstateServices, 
:��rits affiliateswithout notice,andshall notbe reliedupon.September DIALOG" IX) McWHINNEY 

34



MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board of Directors 
FROM: Mike McBride – Project Manager 
Date: March 28, 2023 

RE: Project Management Fees – Linear Park Phase 1 

Board of Directors: 

Per requirements of the Project Management Master Service Agreement between McWhinney 
Real Estate Services, Inc. (MRES, Inc.) and the Baseline Metro District, please accept the below 
information for the subject project and fees proposed by MRES for project management 
services. 

As highlighted in the agreement, PM fees are charged against total project costs, less projected 
warranty and contingency costs as authorized by the District. 

Relevant Project Details: 

1. Total Projected District Budget: $3,253,118

2. Total Projected District Budget (without Contingency and Warranty): $2,789,614

3. MRES will bill the 5% fee in equal installments, adjusted for changes in projected cost,

starting in April 2023.

4. Project Duration:  18 Months

5. Final Projected Billing Month: October 2024

6. Amount Billed per Month: $7,749

7. Total PM Fee (5% of Item #2): $139,481

1800 Wazee Street 
Suite 200 
Denver, CO 80202 
720-360-4700

mcwhinney.com 

2725 Rocky Mountain Avenue 
Suite 200 
Loveland, CO 80538 
970-962-9990

35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



1 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO COST SHARING AGREEMENT 

FOR SANITARY SEWER LINE EXTENSION 

This FIRST AMENDMENT TO COST SHARING AGREEMENT FOR SANITARY 

SEWER LINE EXTENSION (the “First Amendment”) is entered into this _____ day of April, 

2023 (the “Effective Date”), by and between Baseline Metropolitan District No. 1, a quasi-

municipal corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Colorado (“BMD1”) and NORTH 

METRO FIRE RESCUE DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and a political subdivision of 

the State of Colorado (“NMFRD”), individually referred to as a “Party” and collectively referred 

to as the “Parties” or the “Districts.” 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, BMD1 and NMFRD entered into a Cost Sharing Agreement for Sanitary 

Sewer Line Extension dated March 24, 2022, regarding the funding, design, and construction of 

the NMFRD Service Line to serve the NMFRD Property (the “Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, unless otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms used herein will have the 

meaning given to them in the Agreement; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement, BMD1 shall design or cause to be designed 

BMD1’s Service Line, including the BMD4 Service Line, and in consultation and in cooperation 

with NMFRD, the NMFRD Service Line; and  

WHREREAS, BMD1 has designed the Service Line, including the BMD4 Service Line, in 

consultation and in cooperation with NMFRD, and has bid the necessary contracts for the 

construction of the Service Line; and  

WHEREAS, BMD1 and NMFRD acknowledge that, as of the Effective Date, BMD1 has 

commenced construction of the Service Line but has not invoiced NMFRD for payment of the 

Estimated NMFRD Service Line Costs as set forth in Paragraph 2 of the Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, BMD1 has advised NMFRD, and NMFRD has acknowledged, that certain 

construction costs have exceeded the Estimated NMFRD Service Line Costs; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Paragraph 7 of the Agreement, the Agreement may not be 

amended, modified, or changed, in whole or in part, without a written agreement executed by the 

Parties; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the Agreement to replace the Estimated NMFRD 

Service Line Costs with the “Revised Estimated NMFRD Service Line Costs” attached hereto as 

Exhibit A  and to amend the terms associated with NMFRD’s payment of the Revised Estimated 

NMFRD Service Line Costs. 

105



2 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises of the Parties and other good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties 

agree to amend the Agreement as follows: 

 

COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 

 

1. Revised Estimated NMFRD Service Line Costs. The Parties hereby replace the 

Estimated NMFRD Service Line Costs attached as Exhibit A to the Agreement with the Revised 

Estimated NMFRD Service Line Costs attached hereto as Exhibit A. Except as otherwise amended 

herein, all terms and conditions relating to the Estimated NMFRD Service Line Costs shall mean 

and apply to the Revised Estimated NMFRD Service Line Costs. 

 

2. Cost Sharing of Design and Construction Costs. The Parties hereby amend and 

replace Paragraph 2 of the Agreement in its entirety as follows: 

 

The estimated costs for the design and construction of that portion of the Service 

Line representing the NMFRD Service Line are set forth in the Revised Estimated 

NMFRD Service Line Costs and shall be paid by NMFRD to BMD1 upon 

execution of this First Amendment. On May 5, 2023, and no later than the 5th of 

each month thereafter until completion of the Service Line, BMD1 shall provide a 

monthly accounting of the costs associated with the design and construction of the 

NMFRD Service Line. Upon completion of the Service Line and the final actual 

costs attributable to the NMFRD Service Line are known (the “Actual NMFRD 

Service Line Costs”), BMD1 shall provide an accounting of the Actual NMFRD 

Service Line Costs to NMFRD. If the Revised Estimated NMFRD Service Line 

Costs exceed the Actual NMFRD Service Line Costs, BMD1 shall return to 

NMFRD that portion of costs paid in excess of the Actual NMFRD Service Line 

Costs. If the Actual NMFRD Service Line Costs exceed the Revised Estimated 

NMFRD Service Line Costs, BMD1 shall submit notice to NMFRD for payment 

of the amount due. NMFRD agrees to pay any outstanding undisputed amount due 

to BMD1 within thirty (30) days of the date of notice from BMD1. Any disputed 

amount shall be resolved pursuant to Paragraph 3 of the Agreement. 

 

2. Entire Agreement. Except as otherwise provided in this First Amendment, the terms 

and provisions of the Agreement shall remain valid and in full force and effect. The Agreement 

and this First Amendment constitute the entire agreement of the Parties with respect to the subject 

matter therein and hereof, and supersede all prior agreements, understandings, discussions, 

representations, or warranties made by either Party. 

 

3. Counterparts. This First Amendment may be executed, either electronically or by 

original signature, in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and 

together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

 

(Remainder of page left intentionally blank.) 

  

106



3 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this First Amendment to be effective as the 

Effective Date.  

 

 

BASELINE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 

NO. 1 

 

 

By:       

 Kim L. Perry, President 

 

  

107



4 

 

NORTH METRO FIRE PROTECTION 

DISTRICT 

 

 

By:       

 Dave Ramos, Fire Chief 

108



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

REVISED ESTIMATED NMFRD SERVICE LINE COST 

 

 
 

109



Baseline Metropolitan District 
c/o Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 

550 W. Eisenhower Blvd., Loveland, CO 80537 

To: Baseline Metropolitan District Board of Directors 
From: Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 
Subject: Manager’s Report 
Board Meeting Date: April 6, 2023 

General District Matters 

• Please contact Sarah Bromley, District Manager, at sarahbromley@pcgi.com for any District matters which
include operations, Board of Directors relations, financial management, compliance, and constituent relations.

• Since the last board meeting, Michael Garcia, Jr. has been assigned as the Assistant Accounting Manager. The
McWhinney team has also been added to the Baseline Management Team org. chart.

Baseline MD

Board of Directors

Sarah Bromley

District Manager

sarahbromley@pcgi.com

Bryan Newby 

Assistant District Manager

bryann@pcgi.com

Jordan Wood
District Administrator
jordanw@pcgi.com or 

basemdadmin@pcgi.com

Irene Buenavista

Senior Accounting 
Manager

ireneb@pcgi.com

Michael Garcia, Jr.
Assistant Accounting 

Manager
michaelg@pcgi.com

Stanley Holder

Project Manager

stanleyh@pcgi.com

Adam Brix

Facility Operations 
Manager

adamb@pcgi.com

Alan Pogue

Attorney

Icenogle Seaver Pogue, 
P.C.

McWhinney

Jim Niemczyk
Vice President of Land 

Development

Mike McBride
Project Manager

Amanda Dwight
Project Manager

110

mailto:sarahbromley@pcgi.com


• The District’s management team performed routine matters since the March 2, 2023 Board meeting. 
Monthly, District management provides the following services:

o Adheres to administrative and compliance matters.
o Processes monthly payables and financial reports.
o Oversees District budget and operational expenditures.
o Oversees District operations per the approved Service Plan and District needs.
o Collaborates with legal counsel on legal matters.
o Oversee preparation and distribution of board packets including agenda, minutes, reports, contracts, 

and agreements prior to board meetings.
o The Manager consistently communicates with the Board including periodic status reports at each 

board meeting.

• District Management attended the McWhinney Districts Conference Call on April 5, 2023.

• Baseline plans to submit an application for the Sustainable Landscape Community (SLC) designation through 
Associated Landscape Contractors of Colorado (ALCC). ALCC expects to open the application process in 
May or June 2023. The SLC “recognizes large water users, including master-planned and HOA communities, 
commercial properties/sites, and retail properties for using Sustainable Landscape Management guidelines…
which is a program to educate public and private landscape professionals on sustainable, water-conserving 
landscape management principles.” To learn more about SLC visit: www.alcc.com.

• Reuse (Reclaimed Water) inspections by the City of Broomfield will take place between the months of June 
and August. We are working with the EDI Irrigation Director to ensure that all areas undergoing inspection 
are compliant. Following inspection, a certification statement and inspection report will be issued by the city. 
Reuse Reclamation signs will be replaced in the fall.

• Baseline Audit Exemptions for District Nos. 2-9 have been executed and filed. The audit for District No. 1 is 
scheduled for the week of April 17th, 2023.

• Website Analytics:

Baseline Metropolitan District 
c/o Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 

550 W. Eisenhower Blvd., Loveland, CO 80537 

Last Month 2023 YTD 
92+ Visits 250+ Visits 
87+ Unique Visitors 206+ Unique Visitors 
280+ Page Views 668+ Page Views 

• Compliance matters, due dates, and status for the District:

COMPLIANCE MATTERS RESPONSIBLE DUE DATE COMPLETION 
Map Filings PCGI 01/01/23 Completed 
Transparency Notices PCGI 01/15/23 Completed 
File Budget PCGI 01/31/23 Completed 
SDA Membership Renewals PCGI 03/01/23 Completed 
Draft 2024 Budgets Distributed to Board of 
Directors PCGI 10/15/23 

Property & Liability Insurance Renewals PCGI 12/01/23 
Mill Levy Certification PCGI 12/15/23 
Website Compliance PCGI 12/31/23 

Payables PCGI/Board Monthly Sent to Board third week 
of the month 

111

http://www.alcc.com/


Baseline Metropolitan District Monthly O&M Report: 

April 

Current Month Updates 

• EDI completed has completed spring fertilization, aeration, preemergent, and cut back

of ornamental grasses.

• EDI is in the process of cleaning up rock beds and edging.

• First OLM inspection is scheduled on April 28th.

• Coordinating with Brightview on punch list items.

112


	Agenda
	March Meeting Minutes
	Check Detail 
	Contract Modifications
	Financials
	Capital Infrastructure Report
	MRES PM Services - Linear Park Phase 1
	Audit Exemptions Nos. 2-9
	Amended and Restated Davis PILOT partially executed
	First Amendment to Cost Sharing Agreement - Sanitary Sewer 0849030923
	Manager's Report
	 O&M Report



